# IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

FEDERATION FOR AMERICAN	)	
IMMIGRATION REFORM,	)	
25 Massachusetts Ave., NW, Suite 330,	)	
Washington, D.C. 20001,	)	Civil Action No.
	)	
Plaintiff,	)	
	)	
v.	)	
	)	
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH	)	
AND HUMAN SERVICES,	)	
200 Independence Ave, SW,	)	
Washington, D.C. 20201,	)	
	)	
	)	
Defendant.	)	
	)	

### **COMPLAINT**

Plaintiff Federation for American Immigration Reform ("FAIR") brings this action against the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS") to compel compliance with the Freedom of Information Act ("FOIA"), 5 U.S.C. § 552. Plaintiff alleges the following grounds:

### **JURISDICTION AND VENUE**

- 1. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.
  - 2. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).

#### **PARTIES**

- 3. Plaintiff FAIR ("Plaintiff") is a non-profit educational foundation organized under the laws of the District of Columbia and having its principal place of business at 25 Massachusetts Ave., NW, Suite 330, Washington, DC 20001. Plaintiff seeks to educate the citizenry on and increase public awareness of immigration issues, and hold the nation's leaders accountable for enforcing the nation's immigration laws. In furtherance of its public interest mission, Plaintiff regularly requests access to the public records of federal agencies, entities, and offices, and disseminates its findings to the public.
- 4. Defendant HHS is an agency of the U.S. Government and is headquartered at 200 Independence Ave, SW, Washington, DC 20201. HHS has possession, custody, and control of certain public records to which Plaintiff seeks access.

### **STATEMENT OF FACTS**

- 5. On February 8, 2018, Plaintiff submitted a FOIA request by online FOIA portal to HHS, specifically to the Office of Refugee Resettlement, seeking access to the following public records:
  - 1) Any and all records of communications, including but not limited to emails, between Kenneth Tota and Anastasia K. Brown with the U.S. Conference of Catholic Bishops, from January 1, 2014 to January 31, 2018.
  - Datasheet on the number of DACA arrivals and how many were turned over to family members under the family unification process for fiscal years 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, and the first quarter of 2018.
  - Datasheet depicting the age breakdown of unaccompanied alien children entering the United States, specifically between the ages of 0-3, 4-5, 6-7, 8-9, and 10-11, for fiscal years 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, and the first quarter for 2018.
- 6. Plaintiff received an acknowledgment email dated February 8, 2018, from HHS assigning the FOIA request the tracking number 2018-00580-FOIA-OS. On March 1, 2018, Plaintiff received another email notifying Plaintiff that the request was transferred to HHS'

Administration for Children and Families, and assigned the request another tracking number 18-F-0131.

- 7. Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i), HHS was required to determine whether to comply with Plaintiff's FOIA request within twenty (20) working days after receipt of each request and to notify Plaintiff immediately of its determination, the reasons therefor, and the right to appeal any adverse determination. Accordingly, HHS's determination of Plaintiff's FOIA request was due by March 9, 2018, at the latest.
- 8. As of the date of this Complaint, HHS has failed to: (i) determine whether to comply with Plaintiff's FOIA request; (ii) notify Plaintiff of any such determinations or the reasons for such determinations; (iii) advise Plaintiff of the right to appeal any adverse determination; or (iv) produce the requested records or otherwise demonstrate that the requested records are exempt from production.
- 9. Because HHS has failed to comply with the time limit set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A) with respect to the FOIA request, Plaintiff is deemed to have exhausted any and all administrative remedies with respect to the request, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(C).

### COUNT 1 (Violation of FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552)

- 10. Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1 through 9 as if fully stated herein.
- 11. Defendant is unlawfully withholding public records requested by Plaintiff pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552.
- 12. Plaintiff is being irreparably harmed by reason of Defendant's unlawful withholding of the requested public records, and Plaintiff will continue to be irreparably harmed unless Defendant is compelled to conform its conduct to the requirements of the law.

Case 1:18-cv-00791-DLF Document 1 Filed 04/06/18 Page 4 of 4

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court: (1) order Defendant to

conduct a search for any and all records responsive to Plaintiff's FOIA request, and demonstrate

that it employed search methods reasonably likely to lead to the discovery of records responsive

to Plaintiff's FOIA request; (2) order Defendant to produce, by a date certain, any and all non-

exempt records responsive to Plaintiff's FOIA request and a Vaughn index of any responsive

records withheld under claim of exemption; (3) enjoin Defendant from continuing to withhold

any and all non-exempt records responsive to Plaintiff's FOIA request; (4) grant Plaintiff an

award of attorneys' fees and other litigation costs reasonably incurred in this action pursuant to 5

U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(E); and (5) grant Plaintiff such other relief as the Court deems just and

proper.

Dated: April 6, 2018

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Julie B. Axelrod

D.C. Bar No. 1001557

Immigration Reform Law Institute

25 Massachusetts Ave., NW, Suite 335

Washington, DC 20001

Telephone: 202-232-5590

FAX (202) 464-3590

Email: jaxelrod@irli.org

4

## **CIVIL COVER SHEET**

JS-44 (Rev. 6/17 DC)											
I. (a) PLAINTIFFS				DEFENDANTS							
FEDERATION FOR AMERICAN IMMIGRATION REFORM			RM	US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES							
				- 1							
(b) COUNTY OF RESIDEN		PLAINTIFF PLAINTIFF CASES)		-1	COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED DEFENDANT						
		SS, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER	,	$\dashv$	ATTORNEYS		The second secon	CASES, USE T	HE LOCATION OF THE TRACT O	F LAND INVOLV	/ED
Julie B. Axelrod	und, ribbital	oo, rand telefitione monder,	,		ATTORNET	(IF KNOV	VIN)				
IMMIGRATION REI											
25 Massachusetts A		Suite 335									
Washington, DC 20	001										
II. BASIS OF JURISI	NCTION		777 6		ENGWED C		GYD . Y				
(PLACE AN x IN ONE E			PLAIN	II. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (PLACE AN x IN ONE BOX FOR PLAINTIFF AND ONE BOX FOR DEFENDANT) FOR DIVERSITY CASES ONLY!							
1 U.S. Government	O 3 F	ederal Question				PTF	DFT	/		PTF	DFT
Plaintiff		J.S. Government Not a Party)	Citize	n of th	is State	<b>O</b> 1	$\bigcirc$ 1	Incorpor	rated or Principal Place	<b>O</b> 4	<b>O</b> 4
								of Busin	ness in This State		
② 2 U.S. Government Defendant		biversity Indicate Citizenship of	Citize	n of Aı	nother State	<b>O</b> 2	<b>O</b> 2	Incorpor	rated and Principal Plac	e <b>O</b> 5	<b>O</b> 5
Defendant	P	arties in item III)	Citiza	n or Cu	ibject of a	of Busin		ess in Another State			
				n Cou		<b>O</b> 3	<b>O</b> 3	Foreign	Nation	<b>O</b> 6	<b>O</b> 6
(Place an X i	n one cate	IV. CASE ASSIG							andina Natura af C	-:4)	
O A. Antitrust	_								1		
A. Anturusi		Personal Injury/ Malpractice	1	) C	. Admini Review	strative	Agency	,	O D. Tempor		
410 Antitrust		лигрисисе			Keview				Order/Pi Injunction		y
410 Antitrust		irplane	1	15	1 Medicare	Act			Іпјинск	n	
		irplane Product Liability ssault, Libel & Slander	1 5	Social Security			Any nature of suit from any category				
		ederal Employers Liability		861 HIA (1395ff)			may be selected for case assignment.	this catego	ry of		
		larine .	] [	862 Black Lung (923)							
345 Marine Product Liability		- 17	863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) 864 SSID Title XVI			*(If Antitrust, then	A governs)	*			
350 Motor Vehicle 355 Motor Vehicle Product Liability		[	965 DSI (405(a))								
		ther Personal Injury		Other Statutes							
	362 N	ledical Malpractice			1 Agricultur 3 Environm		tore				
		roduct Liability	Ιċ	_	0 Other Sta						
		ealth Care/Pharmaceutical ersonal Injury Product Liabil	lity   -		Administr						
		sbestos Product Liability	inty	Involved)							
		•									
O E. General Civi	l (Other)	OR		0	F. Pro	Se Gen	eral Ci	vil			
Real Property		Bankruptcy				Tax Suits			462 Naturaliza	tion	
210 Land Condemna 220 Foreclosure	ition	422 Appeal 27 USC 15				Taxes (US		for	Application		
230 Rent, Lease & E	jectment	425 Withurawar 28 Ct	30 137			defendant IRS-Third	·	6 USC	465 Other Imm	igration	
240 Torts to Land		Prisoner Petitions				7609			470 Racketeer	Influenced	
245 Tort Product Lis	, and the same of	535 Death Penalty 540 Mandamus & Oth	or		Forfeitur	e/Penalty			& Corrupt	Organizat	ion
290 All Other Real P	roperty	550 Civil Rights				Drug Rela	ated Seiz	ure of	480 Consumer		
Personal Property		555 Prison Conditions				Property :	21 USC	881	490 Cable/Sate		es/
370 Other Fraud 560 Civil Detainee – Condition		ns	690	Other			Exchange	Jumouili	Ca/		
371 Truth in Lending of Confinement 380 Other Personal Property			Other Sta	atutes			896 Arbitration	L	I		
Damage Property Rights					False Clai			899 Administra			
385 Property Damage 820 Copyrights				Qui Tam ( 3729(a))	(31 USC		Act/Review Agency Dec		101		
Product Liability 830 Patent 835 Patent - Abbreviated Ne		ted Nov	v		State Rea	pportio	ment	950 Constitutio		tate	
Drug Application		icu ITEV	430 Banks & Banking		-	Statutes					
		840 Trademark				Commerc	e/ICC		890 Other State		
						Rates/etc. Deportatio	nn .		(if not admi review or P		
						~ vpoi tatil	, 41		TOTION OF I	- All Act	<i>'</i>

#### Case 1:18-cv-00791-DLF Document 1-1 Filed 04/06/18 Page 2 of 2

		T		
O G. Habeas Corpus/ 2255	O H. Employment Discrimination	O I. FOIA/Privacy Act	O J. Student Loan	
530 Habeas Corpus – General 510 Motion/Vacate Sentence 463 Habeas Corpus – Alien Detainee	442 Civil Rights – Employment (criteria: race, gender/sex, national origin, discrimination, disability, age, religion, retaliation)	X 895 Freedom of Information Actions (if Privacy Act)	Student Loan (excluding veterans)	
	*(If pro se, select this deck)*	*(If pro se, select this deck)*		
<ul> <li>○ K. Labor/ERISA (non-employment)</li> <li>□ 710 Fair Labor Standards Act</li> <li>□ 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations</li> <li>□ 740 Labor Railway Act</li> <li>□ 751 Family and Medical Leave Act</li> <li>□ 790 Other Labor Litigation</li> <li>□ 791 Empl. Ret. Inc. Security Act</li> </ul>	□ L. Other Civil Rights (non-employment)  □ 441 Voting (if not Voting Rights Act) □ 443 Housing/Accommodations □ 440 Other Civil Rights □ 445 Americans w/Disabilities - Employment □ 446 Americans w/Disabilities - Other □ 448 Education	M. Contract  110 Insurance 120 Marine 130 Miller Act 140 Negotiable Instrument 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits 160 Stockholder's Suits 190 Other Contracts 195 Contract Product Liability 196 Franchise	N. Three-Judge Court  441 Civil Rights – Voting (if Voting Rights Act)	
V. ORIGIN				
O 1 Original Proceeding from State from Appellate or Reopened district (specify)  O 2 Removed of 3 Remanded of 4 Reinstated of 5 Transferred from another Litigation District Judge Litigation of From Mag. Direct File Judge				
VI. CAUSE OF ACTION (CITE THE U.S. CIVIL STATUTE UNDER WHICH YOU ARE FILING AND WRITE A BRIEF STATEMENT OF CAUSE.) 5 U.S.C. Section 552, "Freedom of Information Act." Defendant is unlawfully withholding public records.				
VII. REQUESTED IN CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER F.R.C.P. 23  DEMAND \$ Check YES only if demanded in complaint YES NO X				
VIII. RELATED CASE(S) (See instruction) IF ANY  See instruction YES NO If yes, please complete related case form				
DATE: April 6, 2018	SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECO	ORD Juli ajili	1	
		, ,		

# INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET JS-44 Authority for Civil Cover Sheet

The JS-44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and services of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. Listed below are tips for completing the civil cover sheet. These tips coincide with the Roman Numerals on the cover sheet.

- COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED PLAINTIFF/DEFENDANT (b) County of residence: Use 11001 to indicate plaintiff if resident of Washington, DC, 88888 if plaintiff is resident of United States but not Washington, DC, and 99999 if plaintiff is outside the United States.
- III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES: This section is completed only if diversity of citizenship was selected as the Basis of Jurisdiction under Section II.
- IV. CASE ASSIGNMENT AND NATURE OF SUIT: The assignment of a judge to your case will depend on the category you select that best represents the <u>primary</u> cause of action found in your complaint. You may select only <u>one</u> category. You <u>must</u> also select <u>one</u> corresponding nature of suit found under the category of the case.
- VI. CAUSE OF ACTION: Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing and write a brief statement of the primary cause.
- VIII. RELATED CASE(S), IF ANY: If you indicated that there is a related case, you must complete a related case form, which may be obtained from the Clerk's Office.

Because of the need for accurate and complete information, you should ensure the accuracy of the information provided prior to signing the form.

# UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Federation for American Immigration Reform

		)	
	Plaintiff	)	
	V.	)	Civil Action No.
U.S. Departme	ent of Health and Human Services	;	
	Defendant	_ )	
	SUMM	IONS IN A CIV	VIL ACTION
To: (Defendo	950 Penns	ney General sylvania Ave, N.V on, D.C. 20530	V.
A laws	uit has been filed against you.		
serve on the pl	aintiff an answer to the attache	ed complaint or be served on the	(not counting the day you received it) you must a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, whose name and
•	fail to respond, judgment by de ou also must file your answer o	•	tered against you for the relief demanded in the ne court.
		1	ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK OF COURT
Date:			
		-	Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

# UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Federation for American Immigration Reform	)
Plaintiff	
$ \begin{tabular}{ll} $v$.\\ \end{tabular} \label{eq:v.} \begin{tabular}{ll} $v$.\\ \end{tabular} \begin{tabular}{ll} $v$.\\ \en$	Civil Action No-
Defendant	)
SUMMO	ONS IN A CIVIL ACTION
	tment of Health and Human Services ndence Ave, SW n, DC 20201
A lawsuit has been filed against you.	
serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached	
If you fail to respond, judgment by defacomplaint. You also must file your answer or	ault may be entered against you for the relief demanded in the motion with the court.
	ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK OF COURT
Date:	Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
	dignature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

# UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Federation for American immigration Reform	
Plaintiff	)
v.	) Civil Action No.
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services	)
Defendant	, )
SUMMON	NS IN A CIVIL ACTION
To: (Defendant's name and address) U.S. Attorney 555 4th Stree Washington, I	
A lawsuit has been filed against you.	
serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached co	nons on you (not counting the day you received it) you must omplaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, whose name and tute
If you fail to respond, judgment by defau complaint. You also must file your answer or m	It may be entered against you for the relief demanded in the otion with the court.
	ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK OF COURT
Date:	
	Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk